Counclil

kent.gov.uk

AGENDA

Kent County Council

REGULATION COMMITTEE MEMBER PANEL

Wednesday, 1st March, 2017, at 10.15 am Ask for: Andrew Tait
The Hope Room, Otford Village Memorial Telephone 03000 416749
Hall, 8 High Street, Otford TN14 5PQ

Tea/Coffee will be available 15 minutes before the meeting

Membership

Mr A H T Bowles (Chairman), Mr S C Manion (Vice-Chairman), Mr L Burgess,
Mr M J Harrison and Mr T A Maddison

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public)

1. Substitutes
2. Declarations of Interest by Members for items on the agenda

3. Application to divert Public Footpath SR49 from the at grade Foot Crossing to a
stepped bridge at Otford. (Pages 3 - 70)

4. Other items which the Chairman decides are Urgent

EXEMPT ITEMS

(At the time of preparing the agenda there were no exempt items. During any such items
which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public)

John Lynch
Head of Democratic Services
03000 410466

Tuesday, 21 February 2017






Agenda Item 3

Application to divert part of public footpath SR49 from the at grade
foot crossing to a stepped bridge at Otford, Sevenoaks

A report by the Head of Regulatory Services to Kent County Council's Regulation
Committee Member Panel on Wednesday 1** March 2017.

Recommendation: | recommend that the applicant be informed that an Order to
divert public footpath SR49 from the ‘at grade’ foot crossing to a stepped
bridge at Otford, Sevenoaks, is made.

Local Member: Mr Nick Chard Unrestricted item

Introduction and background

1. The County Council has received an application to divert part of public footpath
SR49 at Otford. The application has been made by Network Rail, in the interests
of safety, to remove the at grade foot crossing from the railway line and to run the
path over a stepped bridge. Planning permission has been granted for the
construction of the bridge (Planning reference: SE/15/01863/PART18 granted on
18™ September 2015).

2. In respect of danger, this particular crossing is ranked by Network Rail as 29" of
561 level crossings on the South East Route. In terms of risk when considering
those crossings which cater for public footpaths, this one ranks 1% of 278 and
puts it within the top 1% in the country based on Network Rail's assessment.

3. On a normal week day there are approximately 108 services that stop at Otford
station with the number of train movements varying between 156 and 173 per
day.

4. The main concerns for Network Rail at this crossing are the insufficient sighting,
high level of use and evidence of misuse, coupled with the high level of vulnerable
users, in particular unaccompanied children and the elderly. The proposed
solution of a footbridge with steps would remove the risk of serious injury to users
and allow uninterrupted use.

5. The length of path to be diverted is shown by solid black lines between points A-B
on the plan at Appendix A.
The proposed new route is shown by bold black dashes between points A-C-D-B.
An extract from the Definitive Map can be found at Appendix B to show the path
in context with the rest of the public rights of way network.

6. A copy of the application and Diversity Impact Assessment can be found at
Appendix C.

Page 3



Policy

7. The Countryside Access Improvement Plan, Operational Management document
(2013) sets out the County Council's priorities for keeping the Definitive Map and
Statement up to date. The main priorities in respect of Public Path Change
Orders are:

Public Path Change Orders will normally be processed in the order in which
applications are received, except in any of the following circumstances where an
Order maybe processed sooner:

e Where it will satisfy one or more of the relevant key principles set out in
paragraphs 4.14 — 4.25 of the CAIP Operational Management document,

e Where an application has been made to the County Council in its capacity as
Planning Authority

* Where the processing of an Order could save significant costs incurred in
other Rights of Way functions

e Where a Public Path Change Order is made concurrently with Orders made
under Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act.

8. The County Council will take into account whether the following criteria are
satisfied before promoting a Public Path Change Order. Irrespective of the
following, the statutory tests (as set out within the Legal Tests section) for
changing public rights of way must apply.

I. The status of the route must not be in dispute at the time of the application,
unless the Public Path Order is being implemented concurrently with an
application under Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981.

Il. The applicant must agree to meet the County Council's costs of promoting the
Order and bringing the new path into a fit condition for public use.

[Il.The applicant must also agree to defray any compensation which may
become payable as a result of the proposai.

IV.The definitive line should, where it is considered by the County Council to be
reasonably practicable be open, clear and safe to use.

9. However, nothing in this policy is intended to prevent the County Council

promoting a Public Path Change Order in any case where it considers it
appropriate in all the circumstances to do so.

Page 4 2



Legal Tests — Rail Crossing Diversion Order

10. Legislation relating to the diversion of a public path is contained within Section
119A of The Highways Act 1980: The Procedure is in Schedule 6 of the same
Act.

(i) The Council may make an Order to divert a public path if it is satisfied that it is
in the interests of the safety of users or likely users of at grade crossings.

(i) particular consideration has to be given to whether or not it is reasonably
practicable to make the existing crossing safe for the public and what
arrangements will be made to erect and maintain barriers and signs at the closed
crossing.

Government Guidance
11. Rights of way circular (1/09) Guidance for local Authorities — also states:
Rail crossing diversion orders (section 119A of the 1980 Act) Para 5.51

“While other criteria are not specified in section 119A, the new way should be
reasonably convenient to the public and authorities should have regard to the
effect that the proposal will have on the land served by the existing path or way
and on the land over which the new path or way is to be created. Consideration
should also be given to the effect that the diverted way will have on the rights of
way network as a whole and the safety of the diversion, particularly where it
passes along or across a vehicular highway.”

Page 5



Consultations:-
12. Consultations have been carried out as required by the Act:-

County Member and Borough Councillors

13. County Member Mr Nick Chard and District Councillors John Edwards-Winser
and Michelle Lowe were consulted. The Public Rights of Way and Access
Service ("“PROWAS") made a request to Mr Chard that this case should be put
before Members for decision, which he agreed to, but he expressed no opinion
on the proposal itself.

The Rt Hon Michael Fallon MP

14. Although not consulted directly, a number of residents and a Parish Councillor
contacted Michael Fallon MP to express their concerns about the consultation
process and the impact of the crossing on disabled access and to ask him to
facilitate a site meeting. The process and procedure was explained to Mr Fallon,
and the consultation deadline was extended and a further site meeting was held.

Sevenoaks District Council

15. Sevenoaks District Council stated it had no objection to the proposed diversion.
A site visit had been carried out as part of the assessment and the District
Council considered the proposal is in the interest of public safety and that the
diversion does not significantly increase the distance of the path or make it
substantially less convenient for the public.

Otford Parish Council

16. Otford Parish Council agrees with the proposal. However, Parish Councilior
Philip Clucas responded to the consultation separately. He had previously
suggested an alternative bridge crossing in 2014, which Network Rail rejected
mainly due to cost and time factors. Despite having had several meetings,
Network Rail did not address the following issues that Councillor Clucas raised:
) Consideration of local resident Tom Housden’s disability (cerebral
palsy);
. On-going maintenance and other safety features such as lighting, wet /
freezing weather;
. Accidents related to steps on a footbridge greater than that on level
crossings;
. Many parents with buggies & young children would find it very hard to
negotiate the 60+ steps on the bridge. He believes that this group of people
would end up having to walk further to avoid the bridge and cross the
dangerous Station Road {possibly twice) to get to and from the school;

o Clarification on who would clear / grit the steps in snow and icy weather; who
would be responsible if an accident occurred?

e Councillor Clucas attended a further site meeting with PROWAS Officers.

Page 6 4



The Otford Society

17. The Otford Society does not object to the proposal.

User Groups

18. The Open Spaces Society, the Ramblers and the British Horse Society were
consulted. The Ramblers' representative agrees with the proposal but noted that
a bridge would be less convenient for the elderly and physically disabled.

West Kent Area Public Rights of Way Officer

19. The PROW Officer responsible for the Sevenoaks area does not agree with the
proposal. She considers that the increased risk to personal attack (there will be
seven changes of direction within the new route and no sight of anyone hiding)
outweighs the danger to pedestrians of collisions with rolling stock. The
proposed new route will be longer and the bridge would contain 62 steps as
opposed to two stiles currently on the footpath.

Statutory Undertakers

20. No objections were received from any Statutory Undertakers who responded to
the consultation.

Kent County Council Traffic Schemes {(Highway Services)

21. No response was received from Kent Highway Services.

Tom Housden

22. Tom Housden is a local resident and has cerebral palsy. He attended the site
meeting with PROWAS Officers. He objects to the proposal as the existing two
stiles leading to the level crossing do not present him with any difficulty, but the
large amount of steps on the proposed bridged crossing would be more
dangerous and more inconvenient for him. He has not had any response from
Network Rail to his disability issues. Network Rail has stated to the County
Council that it is unable to assess the needs of individuals.

Barry Davies

23. Barry Davies attended the site meeting with PROWAS Officers. He objects to
the proposal, stating that, in his opinion, accidents on level crossings are very
rare; the risk only exists when the hazard (the moving train) is present. At all
other times, the risk is zero. However, falls from staircases are one of the most
common causes of accidents in the UK, and can also prove fatal. Every user
will be exposed to this hazard every time. He further suggested that the
collective risk of injury is likely to be greater than that from the occasional
passing train. Mr Davies also considered that users with pushchairs or bicycles
would not be able to use the bridge and so would have to go a significant
distance further and along the main road. The road does not have a footway all
the way along and so could carry a greater risk than that associated with the
level crossing.

Page 7



The Case - the proposed diversion of part of Public Footpath SR49 at Otford

24. In dealing with the application to divert a public right of way, consideration must
be given to the following criteria of Section 119A of the Highways Act 1980: -

a) Whether it is in the interests of the safety of users or likely users of at grade
crossings

b) whether it is reasonably practicable to make the crossing safe for use by the
public, and what arrangements have been made for ensuring that, if the order is
confirmed, any appropriate barriers and signs are erected and maintained.

c) whether the diversion order alters a point of termination of the path or way, if that
point is not on a highway over which there subsists a like right of way or,
otherwise than to another point which is on the same highway, or another such
highway connected with it.

d) whether the order should make provision requiring the operator of the railway to
maintain all or part of the right of way created by the order.

25. To be taken into account but not listed as criteria under Section 119A of the Act
but in Rights of Way Circular (1/09):

a} Whether the right of way will be reasonably convenient to the public;

b} The effect the proposal will have on the land served by the existing path or way
and on land over which the new path or way is to be created.

c) The effect that the diverted way will have on the rights of way network as a whole.

d) The safety of the diversion, particularly where it passes along or across a
vehicular highway.

Page 8 6



26. Those criteria are considered individually and conclusions drawn below: -

a) Whether it is expedient in the interests of the safety of users or likely users of the
crossing.

A number of risk assessments have been undertaken by Network Rail, the most
recent in October 2015. This latest risk assessment increased the risk score from a
rating of C3 (high risk) to C2 (higher risk), due to usage figures and an increase in
numbers of vulnerable users. This is despite the fact there is a temporary speed
restriction in force limiting trains to 45mph rather than the usual 60mph. The
temporary speed restriction was imposed due to the insufficient sighting available at
the level crossing. Whistle boards had previously been installed in order to mitigate
the insufficient sighting at the crossing; however, following a Noise Abatement
Notice, they had to be removed. The resulting impact was the implementation of the
speed resfriction.

In terms of danger, this particular crossing is ranked by Network Rait as 29" of 561
level crossings on the South East Route. In terms of risk, when considering those
crossings which cater for public footpaths, this one ranks 1% of 278 and puts it within
the top 1% in the country based on Network Rail's assessment. The main concerns
for Network Rail at this crossing are insufficient sighting, high level of use and
evidence of misuse, coupled with the high level of vulnerable users, in particular
unaccompanied children and the elderly. An incident log provided by Network Rail
can be found at Appendix C. These incidents are not weighted however. As part of
the risk modelling, Network Rail's All Level Crossing Risk Model asks a number of
questions and one of them is whether there have been any incidents in the last three
years. If the answer is yes, then the box is ticked and the All Level Crossing Risk
Model will add this information into its risk score. Network Rail considers the
proposed solution of a footbridge with steps would remove the risk of serious injury
to users and allow uninterrupted use.

Network Rail has calculated that 13.5 seconds are required for vulnerable users to
cross a level crossing. The traverse time is calculated based on the length of the
crossing between decision points. For this crossing, this was calculated by taking an
average person 9 seconds to cross. Due to the amount of vulnerable users that
cross the crossing an additional 50% was added to the traverse time.

It is difficult to fully assess the safety case Network Rail has put forward and so
witness statements relating to the logged incidents were requested by the County
Council under Freedom of Information. This was to ascertain which incidents were
relevant and what the criteria was for reporting a ‘near miss’. The incident (logged at
Appendix C) that was deemed a suicide, for example, could not be seen as relevant
in this case; nor some of the other incidents logged such as “contractor working
unsafely.” Network Rail has confirmed that the only criteria for reporting a ‘near
miss’ is if the driver considers it to be; it is totally dependent on the driver's
perception of the incident. Unfortunately, Network Rail has only recently responded
that it does not hold the information requested and that it is held by the British
Transport Police so a further FOI request would have to be made to them.

Page 9 7



It is evident that there have been some incidents on this level crossing, particularly in
relation to misuse, although it is too difficult to accurately assess the near misses.
There is, of course, an inherent risk with any level crossing, but, as Mr Davies has
pointed out, when no train is present, neither is the risk. Network Rail considers that
the stepped bridge will be a safer option for the public, also enabling uninterrupted
use of the crossing. There is an argument that for at least one member of the public
who uses the crossing reguiarly (Tom Housden), a stepped bridge will be more
dangerous. However, for those who are blind or partially-sighted for example, a
bridge will be much safer.

Taking into account all of the above, this case is very finely balanced; but taking into
account the number of trains using this line, the ever increasing speeds of those
trains and the number of incidents at this crossing, the County Council considers
that, on balance, it is expedient to divert the footpath in the interests of the safety of
users or likely users of the crossing.

b) whether it is reasonably practicable to make the crossing safe for use by the
public, and what arrangements have been made for ensuring that, if the order is
confirmed, any appropriate barriers and signs are erected and maintained.

Whistle boards had previously been installed on both approaches in order to
mitigate the insufficient sighting at the crossing. However, due to noise complaints
and the serving of a Noise Abatement Notice, the whistle boards had to be removed.
The resulting impact was the implementation of the speed restriction, which affects
train performance and causes delays. Vegetation management has been
undertaken, and is regularly required to maintain current sighting distances, but due
to track curvature no further improvement could be made to available sighting.

Network Rail has not identified any other works that could be undertaken to improve
safety of the crossing.

The existing level crossing will be securely fenced off in order to prevent
unauthorised access to the railway. Any signage required by the Council at the
crossing {and any other points) will be provided.

¢) whether the diversion order alters a point of termination of the path or way, if that
point is not on a highway over which there subsists alike right of way or, otherwise
than to another point which is on the same highway, or another such highway
connected with it.

The new route does not alter the point of termination of the path.

d) whether the order should make provision requiring the operator of the railway fo
maintain all or part of the right of way created by the order.

Network Rail will maintain the structure of the bridge and future maintenance of the
surface of the footpath where it forms part of the bridge.

Page 10



Tests to be considered under Circular (1/09)
27. a) Whether the right of way will be reasonably convenient to the public.

The proposed route will run over a new stepped bridge which has been granted
planning permission. The bridge will have 28 steps on its eastern side with a mid-
way level and 34 steps on its western side with a mid-way level. The existing route
has a stile and a series of approximately 6 wide-spaced steps leading to the east
side of the level crossing and a stile on the west side. Network Rail has been asked
if the stiles could be removed to make access easier but it has stated that this would
increase the risk to the crossing as more vulnerable users would be able to use the
crossing, further increasing the level crossing risk. This is unacceptable to Network
Rail. Although not easily negotiable, it is known that some people with pushchairs
do use this route; it is unlikely they would be able to use the stepped bridge. As
already stated, local resident Tom Housden, currently uses the level crossing
without issue, but would find the bridge very inconvenient and dangerous so may not
be able to use it. Network Rail has stated that it is unable to assess the needs of
individuals. Wheelchair users cannot use the existing route and would not be able
to use the stepped bridge either. People who are visually impaired or blind would
find the bridge more convenient and easier to use. Taking the above into account, it
is evident that the stepped bridge will inconvenience some users of the crossing.

b) The effect the proposal will have on the land served by the existing path or way
and on land over which the new path or way is to be created.

The proposal will have no impact on the land served by the existing right of way or
on land over which the new path is to be created.

c) The effect that the diverted way will have on the rights of way network as a whole.

The diverted way will have little impact on the rights of way network as a whole. The
termination points are unchanged and there is very little added distance as a result.
However, the bridge will possibly exclude some walkers who can currently use the
level crossing.

d) The safety of the diversion, particularly where it passes along or across a
vehicular highway.

The safety of the new route over the stepped bridge has been queried. Network Rail
was asked to provide accident statistics on its current stepped bridges (in relation to
falls, etc.) so that a comparison of risk could be made. See Appendix D for a table
showing the accident statistics. These are recorded via Network Rail's National
Helpline and entered into its Safety Management Information System. It is
recognised that there may be many more incidents that are never reported to
Network Rail. There is, therefore, a concern that the proposed new route running
over the stepped bridge is not significantly safer than the level crossing.

Page 11



Further considerations

28. In addition to the tests set out in section 119A of the Highways Act 1980, the
County Council must also have regard to the following issues when considering an
application to divert a public right of way:

29. Under section 29 of the Highways Act 1980, the County Council has a duty to
have regard to the needs of agriculture (including the breeding and keeping of
horses), forestry and the desirability of conserving flora, fauna and geologica!l and
physiographical features. In this case, there is no adverse effect caused by the
diversion of the path.

30. Section 40 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006
requires that every public authority must have regard “so far as is consistent with the
proper exercise of [its] functions, to the purpose of conserving biodiversity”. In this
case, there is no adverse effect caused by the diversion of the path.

31.  Where the affected land forms part of an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty
(AONB), section 85 of the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000 requires that the
County Council shall have regard to ‘the purpose of conserving and enhancing the
natural beauty” of the AONB. In this case the land does not form part of the Kent
Downs AONB and as such there is no adverse effect.

32.  Under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, the County Council has
a duty to exercise its functions “with due regard to the likely effect of the exercise of
those functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent, crime
and disorder in its area". In this case, there is no adverse effect caused by the
diversion of the path.

33. Finally, the County Council is subject to the public sector duty regarding
socio-economic inequalities set out in section 1 of the Equalities Act 2010. Network
Rail has conducted a Diversity Impact Assessment (see Appendix C). Although
this Assessment did not consider all disabilities, and in particular that of Tom
Housden, it is clear that the new route running over the stepped bridge will be better
for some users {including those who are visually impaired), but detrimental to and
exclude others.

Page 12 10



Conclusion

34. As already stated, it is considered that this case is very finely balanced. Network
Rail does have a safety case and the tests under section 119A of the Highways Act
1980 are met. However, the new route runs over a high stepped bridge, which
includes its own risks, and will exclude some members of the public that are
currently able to access the existing route. On balance it is considered that an Order
should be made. However, in view of the fine balance here, this is one case where
the evidence both for and against the application lends itself to being tested at a
Public Inquiry. Therefore, if objections are received and the Order is submitted to the
Secretary of State for the Environment, Food and Rural Affairs for determination, the
County Council should take a neutral stance at a Public Inquiry.

Recommendation

35. Therefore, it is recommended that the County Council makes an Order under
Section 119A of the Highways Act 1980 to divert part of Public Footpath SR49 at
Otford as shown in Appendix A to this report, on the grounds that it is expedient to
divert the path and that the Definitive Map and Statement are amended accordingly.
It is further recommended that, if objections are received and the Order is submitted
to the Secretary of State for the Environment, Food and Rural Affairs, the County
Council will take a neutral stance.

Accountable Officer:

Mr Mike Overbeke — Tel: 03000 413427 or Email: mike.overbeke@kent.gov.uk
Case Officers:

Mr Graham Rusling — Tel: 03000 413449 or Email: graham.rusling@kent.gov.uk
Mrs Maria McLauchlan — Tel: 03000 413420 or Email: maria.mclauchlan@kent.gov.uk

The case file is available for viewing on request at the PROW & Access Service,
Invicta House, County Hall, Maidstone, Kent, ME14 1XX. Please contact the Case
Officer for further details.

List of appendices

Appendix A - Plan of proposal

Appendix B - Extract from the Definitive Map, sheet 019 (TQ55NW)
Appendix C - Copy of the application and Diversity Impact Assessment
Appendix D - Statistics in relation to falls from steps

Case file - PROW/SR49/7/NR

Page 13

14




Page 14



159300

159200

553]300

N

N
o4

O S
MK
X\

~ v

3{\ %,
7
A

‘e

%-.'.o

*SR59

159300

159200

Key

Route to be diverted
= = = = = New Length of route
sEEEsaERS Unaﬁected ROUteS

Highways Act 1980 - Section 119A
Kent County Council

Proposed Rail Crossing Diversion of
Public Footpath SR49 at Otford

Produced by the KCC Public Rights of Way and Access Sarvice.
© Crown Copyright and database right 2013. Ordnance Survey 100019238

? Kilometres 0‘?5

o1 Created by:| MMcL]Checked by

MMcL

(YT T
0 Miles 0.025

|
005 Reference: | PROW/SR49/7INR

Public Rights of Way and Access Service

Page 15

1:1,000




This page is intentionally left blank



APPEND I B

L5
1
1
X
L ‘
s I vy '
S T M \ { [ng cnai e
ki 2 n L .s —_—
1 & P s s \Q‘e
o=t ook B BV L [ N A \ \
\ = T ’W .--? .2. L \ ",III
S \ 3 St humasy Beitars LN \ L
laB \d“p () _,\_'" Al A SR3Y - =
‘&?%. % 4 R " o Tt LY Y y
A >, ’um_r'-. Pebacy ?d:":' 7\ ~ (4
ﬁ\ N = e Il \ NS

— = Foolpath EXTRACT OF THE WORKING COPY OF THE Created by:
= | = Bridleway DEFINITIVE MAP OF PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY MMcL
— 3 E
V=V Restricted Byway FOR THE COUNTY OF KENT Checked by.
Byway Open to All Traffic ® Crown Copyright and database right 2013. Ordnance Survey 100019238 VoL
Point path number or FOR REFERENCE ONLY - NO FURTHER COPIES .
status changes MAY BE MADE Issue Date:
= 8 @ Boundary of area covered by ; 04/08/2016
1:2500 scale Network Map ot may 1a8a 1o prosecuton o il proceedingt. & :
' eference:
Area covered by 1:2500
2 scale Network Map Produced by the KCC Public Rights of Way and Access Service Mag Sheet 019
0 1 TQSSNW
| Kilometres Page fﬁ |
1 Miles

22

1:10,000




This page is intentionally left blank



Append\e C

REQUEST FOR A RAIL CROSSING DIVERSION ORDER TO BE MADE
UNDER SECTION 119A OF THE HIGHWAYS ACT 1980 (INSERTED BY
THE TRANSPORT AND WORKS ACT 1992)

The following questions are to be answered and the information and maps
requested to be supplied by the applicant to the council which is to be
requested to make the order. Tick the relevant box shown in some questions.

FOR AUTHORITY'S USE ONLY
File Ref:PRod/3RuA 13- /N R

Date acknowledged:

Page 19



(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

®

RAIL CROSSING TO BE EXTINGUISHED BY THE DIVERSION
ORDER

Name and location of rail crossing (including grid reference and parish or
district in which it is located).

Name: Pilgrims Way Level Crossing
Nearest station: Otford

Mileage: SBJ @ 24 miles 14 chains
NGR: TQ533592

Parish: Otford

District: Sevenoaks

County: Kent

Name(s) and number(s) of any footpaths and/or bridleways leading to
the crossing to be extinguished. (Indicate whether footpath or bridleway.)

FP No: SR 49

Length in metres of any path or way to be extinguished.

23 metres

Description of any length of path or way to be extinguished by reference
to terminal points shown on attached map which must be to a scale of
not less than 1:2500 or, if no such map is available, on the largest scale
readily available.

The line coloured red on the attached pian.

List the name(s) and address(es) of the owners, lessees and occupiers
of the land on either side of any path or way to be extinguished.

The Applicant is the owner of all relevant land.

Have you obtained the written consent of every person having an interest
in the land over which any path or way to be extinguished passes, in so
far as such consent is needed?

Yes.

If YES, enclose alf the written consents.

Please see (e) above

If NO, enclose all written consents that you now possess and give

particulars of those where consent has been refused or has yet to be
obtained.

Page 20



(9)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Is the crossing, or any path or way to be extinguished, subject to any
limitations or conditions?

Yes

If YES, give details.

There is a stile present at either side of the level crossing, together with
steps from the stile to the crossing. The leve! crossing deck also has a
slight skew, extending the crassing time for users.

NEW PATHS OR WAYS TO BE CREATED

Describe type: Bridleway or Footpath

Footpath

Give description: width, length, terminal points (indicating any sections
which run over existing paths or ways) by reference to the accompanying
map at paragraph 1(d) above.

Width: 2m

Length: 71 metres

Diversion route is shown by a solid green line on the attached plan.

List the name(s) and address(es) of the owners, lessees or occupiers of
the land over which the new path(s} or way(s) would pass.

The Applicant is the owner of all relevant land.

Have you obtained the written consent of every person having an interest
in the land over which the path or way to be created passes, to this land
being dedicated for this purpose, in so far as such consent is needed?
Yes.

If YES, enclose all the written consents.

Please see (c) above.

If NO, enclose all written consents that you now possess and give
particulars of those where consent has been refused or has yet to be
obtained.

Are you prepared to maintain all or part of the path or way to be created?

In part

If NO, give reasons.

Page 21



()

(9

(h)

(i)

If IN PART, state which sections you are prepared to maintain and give
reasons.

Network Rail will maintain the structure of the bridge, with the Highway
Authority responsible for the surface.

Will the highway authority accept responsibility for that part of the path or
way to be created which does not pass over the applicant’s land?

N/A

If YES, a copy of any relevant letter must be attached.
If NO, state reasons.

Are you prepared to enter into an agreement with the council in
accordance with section 119A(8)7

Yes

If NO, give reasons,
If IN PART, state upon what matters you are not prepared to enter an
agreement with the council and the reasons.

Will the new path or way connect with a trunk road?
No.

Give reasons for the proposed rail crossing diversion order. Include
information about:

The use currently made of the existing path, including numbers and
types of users, and whether there are significant seasonal variations,
giving the source for this information, together with details of any survey
carried out (any circumstances preventing or inhibiting such use must
also be mentioned);

The path over the level crossing is well used by local residents, walkers,
dog walkers, families, unaccompanied children and the elderly.

It is estimated that there are approximately 172 users of the level
crossing per day.

This is considered to be a high level of use over a public footpath level
crossing.

it is also known that people will cross over the level crossing with
bicycles;, thus impeding their manoeuvrability/ability to react to an
approaching train and slowing them down in general when passing over
the level crossing.

Page 22



.

Given the location of the leve! crossing, and being that it provides access
toffrom Otford Railway Station and several housing estates, it is not felt
that use of the level crossing varies seasonally; following a 9 day census
(as reported in the attached Diversity Impact Assessment) the use of the
crossing is seen to be of a consistent level.

The risk to the public of continuing to use the present crossing, and the
circumstances that have given rise to the need to make the proposed
order;

The last risk assessment was carried out on 26" March 2014. On
Network Rail's All Level Crossing Risk Model, which assigns a relative
risk to each level crossing, the crossing scored a rating of C3, making it

high risk (please see Appendix A for further information).

The key risk drivers are:

oNie Nells ile

Sun glare

Insufficient sighting of approaching trains
Fast and frequent trains

High level of users

High level of vulnerable/encumbered users

A few recorded incidents of misuse are listed below:

Date Incident
11" September 1998 Children playing on crossing/near line.
17" August 1998 Near miss with pedestrian.
25" June 2003 Fire at level crossing.
2™ June 2004 Elderly man reported standing on crossing. .
2™ July 2005 Children playing chicken on level crossing.
i August 2008 Children playing on chicken on level crossing.
10™ March 2007 Pedestrian crossed in front of train. Emergency brake

applied.

17" May 2009

Near miss with six ramblers.

23" October 2009 Near miss with pedestrian chasing dog. Emergency brake
applied. L

6" November 2009 Near miss with pedestrian.

30" September 2011 Persons witnessed trespassing on track from level crossing.

31 December 2011

Four youths crossed in front of train. Emergency brake
applied.

22™ September 2012 Group of youths playing chicken on crossing.
8™ October 2012 Three pedestrians witnessed standing on crossing as train
approached.
21% April 2013 Female ran across crossing in front of approaching train.
27" April 2013 Fatality at crossing. Deemed suicide.
11" July 2013 Misuse by children at crossing.
18" April 2014 Children throwing stones from crossing at approaching

l trains.

Page 23



21% January 2015 Bicycle left on rails at crossing. Struck by train.
16™ March 2015 Three youths ran across in front of approaching train. One
then ran back in front of train.
5™ June 2015 Couple crossed in front of approaching train.

The level crossing is situated between Tudor Drive to the east and
Evelyn Road/Hopfield Close to the west.

It can be noted from this photo that the level crossing surface has a
‘skew’ in it; this also adds to the risk of the crossing as users cannot walk
in a direct and straight line in order the cross over the railway line.

Page 24



When crossing from Tudor Drive and looking right towards Otford
Station, the available sighting of approaching trains to a user is:

The sighting here can be obscured due to vegetation and track
curvature; even with vegetation management this cannot be sufficiently
improved; there are no options available to improve the sighting.

When looking left from the same point, the sighting available is:

Page 25



Again, it can be seen that available sighting is reduced due lo track
curvature. This could not be improved.

When loaoking left from the Evelyn Road/Hopfield Close side of the

crossing, towards Otford Station, the available sighting is:

Page 26



It can be appreciated from these photos that the available sighting is
much worse when crossing from west to east, due to the track curvature,
These sighting distances cannot be increased.

In order to mitigate the insufficient sighting distances available to users
whistle boards were installed on both approaches; they required train
drivers to sound their horns on approaching the level crossing. This
system relied on the individual actions of drivers and the residual risk
remained that users of the level crossing may not hear or appreciate the
significance of the train homn.

However, due to noise complaints and the serving of a Noise Abatement
Notice, the whistle boards were removed.

As a consequence a Temporary Speed'Restriction was placed on the
line, requiring trains to trave! at a slower speed, thus affecting train
performance and causing delays.

One of the main concems (second to that of insufficient sighting) at this
crossing is the high level of usage, especially by unaccompanied
children.

Unaccompanied children are more likely to become distracted when
using the level crossing and are more likely to misuse the crossing when
in groups, thus increasing the risk at the crossing.

The usage is of further concern given that users are required to negotiate
stiles and steps when accessing the level crossing and may lose their
balance whilst trying to carry items, guide children, control dogs, or push
bicycles over the crossing.

As mentioned above, the level crossing surface is also at a slight skew
S0 users must negotiate the decking in place and are unable to pass
over the level crossing in a consistent straight line; not only does this
increase the length of time it takes to pass over the level crossing, but it
may also cause users to lose balance or trip when carrying objects etc.

Given the consistent level of usage of the level crossing there are
concems that users may become complacent and fail to look and listen
correctly for approaching trains; this is most likely when users only use
the crossing at certain times of day and may cross under the illusion that
it is safe to do so, as it has been at that time of day before, without
checking correctly.

The line speed on both lines over the crossing is 60 mph; it is possible

that this line speed will be increased in line with government policies to
reduce passenger journey times.

Page 27



i

There are 170 trains passing over the crossing per day; it is also possible
that this number may increase in line with government desires to
increase passenger numbers on the railway.

Insufficient sighting at the crossing, coupled with the fast speed of
approaching trains, with virtually no approaching sound, produces a
negative relationship between the crossing time for users and the
approaching trains.

The effect of the extinguishment of the crossing and the creation of the
proposed new path(s) or way(s) having regard to the convenience to
users and the effect on any connecting rights of way and the network as
a whole,

The footpath will be diveried to a newly erected stepped footbridge
situated approximately 20 metres to the north of the existing level
crossing.

Convenience to users will be minimally impacted as the proposed
diversion route links the land on both sides of the crossing and also links
up to the existing footpath network in the area at the same points as the
current footpath.

Users of the footpath will also no longer have to stop to wait for trains to
pass or come in to direct contact with the railway line.

The proposed diversion route, via the footbridge, will take less than 5
minutes to walk.

The attached Diversity Impact Assessment (DIA) discusses further the
impact of closure of the level crossing and Network Rails’ assessment of
the proposed diversion in regards to the Equalities Act 2010.

Whilst the attached DIA recognises that use of the level crossing is made
by users with pushchairs, it is noted that those users have the physical
capability to manceuvre those pushchairs over two stiles and via steps in
order to pass over the crossing; it is not felt that a stepped footbridge
would therefore have a negative impact on those users. It should also be
noted that this use only made up 0.6% of total usage of the crossing.
Further, the installation of a footbridge will prevent users with pushchairs
coming into direct contact with the railway and will therefore have much
safer crossing experience.

Due to the current level crossing only enabling access via able-bodied
persons it was not possible under the DIA to assess what, if any, usage
was desired by non-able bodied users. As detailed in the DIA there is an
accessible alternative route already in existence via Station Road
overbridge, 200m to the north.

Page 28



It should also be noted that the approaches on both sides of the level
crossing are very narrow and it is likely that third party land would be
required in order to widen these approaches to an acceptable width for
accessibility purposes. These approaches are outside of Network Rail
ownership and therefore the widening of such would be beyond the
control of Network Rai!.

It would not be possible for Network Rail to pursue an accessible solution
at this location given land ownership (both for siting of the structure and
land to enable construction) and funding constraints. It is also unlikely
that a ramped footbridge in this location would be successful in obtaining
planning permissian due to the size and bulk of the required structure
and the proximity to residential properties on either side of the railway.

The opportunity for taking alternative action to remedy the problem such
as a bridge or tunnel in place of the existing crossing or the carrying out
of safety improvements to the existing crossing;

Whistle boards could be repositioned on both lines approaching the
crossing as sighting of approaching trains is deficient in both directions.
Whistle boards assist in mitigating the risk at level crossings, but do not
remove the risk, as discussed above. It is unlikely this would be
acceptable to local residents due to historic complaints and the issuing of
a Noise Abatement Notice.

Vegetation management has been undertaken, and is regularly required
to maintain current sighting distances, but due to track curvature and the
location of the property adjacent to the crossing no further improvement
could be made to available sighting.

No other works can be undertaken to improve safety of the crossing in its
current focation.

Please see Appendix A for further details.

The estimated cost of any practicable measures identified under (iv)
above;

Please see Appendix A for further details.
The barriers and/or signs that would need to be erected at the crossing
and the points from which any path or way is to be extinguished or
created, assuming the order is confirmed: and
The existing level crossing will be securely fenced off in order to prevent

unauthorised access to the railway. Any signage required by the Council
at the crossing (and any other points) will be provided.

Page 29



3

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

The safety of the alternative right of way to be created by the order
relative to the existing rail crossing.

The diverted footpath will remove the need for users to pass directly over
the railway via a level crossing and will remove members of the public
away from the railway infrastructure entirely.

There will be no need for whislle boards to be re-installed nor will trains
be subject to a speed restriction; allowing users free flowing passage
over the railway line.

NAMES AND ADDRESSES OF PUBLIC UTILITY UNDERTAKERS IN
AREA (whether or not their apparatus is likely to be affected):

Public gas supplier

Southern Gas Networks Ltd
Inveralmond House

200 Dunkeld Road

Perth

PH1 3AQ

Public electricity supplier

UK Power Networks plc
Newington House

237 Southwark Bridge Road
London SE1 6NP

Water undertaker

South East Water
Rocfort Road
Snodland

Kent MEG 5AH

Sewerage undertaker (if different)

Thames Water
Developer Services
Clearwater Court
Vastern Road
Reading

RG1 8DB

Public telecommunications operator

Page 30



BT Openreach

National Notice Handling Centre
PP 3WW18

Telecom House

Trinity Street

Hanley

Stoke-on-Trent ST1 5ND

(fy  Others (specify).
N/A

4. MAPS AND PLANS

List below all maps and plans accompanying this request, giving details of
their scale and content. In addition to the map mentioned in paragraph 1(d),
this must include a map of a scale not less than 1:25,000 or, if no such map is
available, on the largest scale readily available, showing the crossing and any
paths or ways to be extinguished or created, and any connecting paths or
ways.

The route of the public footpath to be extinguished is shown on the
attached plan in a solid red line. The route of the proposed diversion is
shown in a solid green line. The route of any unaffected public footpaths
is shown in a solid blue line.

§. OTHER INFORMATION
Give any other information you consider relevant.

Please see Appendix A attached.

DECLARATION

IWe

(@) Understand that no authority for the extinguishment, obstruction or
creation of any path or way in this request is conferred uniess or until a
Rail Crossing Diversion Order has been confirmed and come into force;

(b) request that a Rail Crossing Diversion Order be made and confirmed
relating to the crossing and paths or ways described in Sections 1 and 2
above; and

(c) declare that, to the best of my/our knowledge and belief, all of the factual
information included in this form is true and accurate.

Signed @QL_Q_Q\

Page 31



Name in capitals NICOLA MEE

On behalf of (name of railway or tramway operator) Network Rail

Address Floor 3 Suite 1A

Waterloo Station

London

SE18SW
Position held Liability Negotiations Adviser
Date 15— O1-1&

Note: the council will need all relevant information to enable them to proceed

Page 32



~
/\ fe=———m=—x10m

PILGRIMS WAY
SBJ 24m 14ch
Plot Scale 1.300
Plot Date 13/7/2015
ek o o D Burvey i Page 33 Network Rall
wts parsition of I conirolier of Her Masety's
Sy, Silce Crnen Copuse



Page 34



——110m

U=

1:300

13712015

PILGRIMS WAY
SBJ 24m 14ch

Plot Scale

Plot Date

Network Rail

7 4

Page 35

Raprtaucad from tha Ordnence Survey Mag
wh parrassian of i STl of Her Majesty's

Sustiorety Office, Crown Copyright.
e R R WL



Page 36



Appendix-A-— Justification & Other Information

1. Background

With the support of the Office of Rail Regulation, Network Rail are running a
£130m investment programme to improve safety and reduce the risk wherever
the public highway or footpath meets the railway across the railway network.

Part of the campaign is to seek the opportunity to completely remove the risk to
members of the public from coming into contact with high speed trains through
the closure or diversion of level crossings, especially where a safer alternative
route exists. Footpath crossings were also the focus of our recent TV advertising
campaign, ‘See Track - Think Train'.

Apart from Network Rail's own standards, guidance for Level Crossings is
provided by the Office of Rail Regulation in the form of a booklet called ‘Level
Crossings: A guide for managers, designers and operators — Railway Safety
Publication 7 — December 2011'. In its introduction on Page 3 the ORR state
within their policy on level crossings that “....... Risk control should, where

practicable, be achieved through the elimination of level crossings...........".

Level crossings are generally only safe when they are used correctly, incorrect
use can be intentional or accidental, but can both result in serious consequences
for the user. Accidental misuse can be caused by a lack of awareness, such as
in children or young people, or time taken to cross which is increased for those
who are mobility impaired or encumbered, such as elderly people.

Network Rail has analysed the data relating to incidents across all our level
crossings nationally, and established that of those involving members of the
public, 97% occur because of their personal behaviour and attitude towards level
crossings. We are not realistically in a position to educate safe use with each
and every member of the public who could potentially use a public footpath
crossing.

Other areas of risk lie where pedestrians are travelling in groups as they are
easily distracted; carrying bags, a dog's lead or holding other objects may also
divert their concentration. There is now more evidence suggesting that many
users wear earphones connected to electronic devices and cannot hear
approaching trains. Coupled with the type of clothing now frequently worn, i.e.
hoodies; there is a large element of pedestrians who do not see or hear
approaching trains.

Network Rail is committed to improving level crossing safety but is ultimately
unable to control how individuals use level crossings; this is what drives our

policy to close level crossings where possible and where a suitable alternative
route for crossing the railway can be found or delivered.

Page 1 of 3

Page 37



2. Risk Assessment

Network Rail uses a complex quantitative process to assess all risks at all its level
crossings. These risk assessments help in the decision making process, where to
pursue closure or where to invest in additional safety measures if closure cannot
be achieved, such as on a public road or where there are no suitable alternatives
available. This risk assessment process was independently reviewed for accuracy
before it was introduced in 2007 and it has been audited internally and by the ORR
since.

The risk assessment process considers amongst other things the type of crossing,
how many people use it, available sighting for users, whether there are vulnerable
and/or infrequent users, the frequency and speed, and different speeds of train
services. The resulting risk score provides a normalised figure for risk and consists
of a lelter and a number.

* The letter represents the level of risk of a fatality to an individual crossing
user, where A is the highest risk and M is the lowest risk

« The number represents the collective level of risk that may include, for
example, train crew and or passengers, as well as those using the crossing

The highest risk crossings are those which score A, B or C for individual risk and 1
to 4 for collective risk.

Risk mitigation measures open to Network Rail are discussed below:

a) Eliminating the Risk:
» Provision of Footbridge (with diversion of public footpath) — This is the
proposed solution at this location.
o Provision of a Tunnel — due to the geographical location of the level
crossing it would not be possible to construct a tunnel.

b) Reducing the Risk:

+ Reducing the line speed — There is currently a Temporary Speed restriction
in place which is causing delays to trains and also incurring financial
penalties to Network Rail and the Train Operating Companies. The
expectation of Government funding in Network Rail is that line speeds
should increase in order to reduce passenger journey times. They should
not be permanently reduced on main line routes. This is therefore not an
option and would not be acceptable.

» Provision of warning systems for users — Although this could be
implemented, it is not felt that a waming system would be effective or
acceptable at this location. These systems do not prevent misuse and are
only effective when obeyed by users; given the historic issues of misuse at

Page 2 of 3

Page 38



this crossing it is not felt that the installation of a warning system would
prevent misuse and therefore an incident would still be possible. Further,
any waming system would also have audible warnings, which given the
issuing of a Noise Abatement Notice in respect of whistle boards, it is
unlikely that local residents would support an audible alarm at the crossing.
The system would require the retention of the stiles and steps at the level
crossing itself and would also still require users to come into contact with
the railway line and have to wait for trains to pass before crossing.

3. Summary

It is Network Rail's view that the best option to facilitate closure of the level
crossing at this location is the installation of a stepped footbridge.

Not only would users no longer have to negotiate stiles, but they would not have
to look for approaching trains or wait for them to pass before passing over the
railway line.

The installation of a footbridge, and diversion of the public footpath, would
remove the need for users to come into contact with the railway line, thus
increasing the safety of public footpath users.

It is not felt that there is a great loss of amenity to users of the public footpath by

the diversion over the footbridge; users will still start and end in the same
location.

Page 3 of 3

Page 39



Page 40



NetworkRail

Diversity Impact Assessment

National Level Crossing Risk Reduction Programme (NLCRRP)
Pilgrims Way Level Crossing, Otford, Kent {TN14 5QP)

OS reference — TQ 533592

19" October 2015

B L1 o et o
"_‘t‘: e

S Filtydeat
Yeod L

“\i“'ﬁ‘—“‘
W ...ii‘\

Introduction

Pilgrims Way level crossing is located in the village of Otford, just to the south of Otford
Railway Station and is on the route of a public right of way. The crossing provides
access between residential areas to the railway, Railway Station and towards the village
centre.

Diversity Impact Assessments (DIA) are the method used by Network Rail to clearly
demonstrate that we have paid due regard to our duties within the Equality Act 2010.
The DIA is a tool that helps Network Rail confirm that our policies and the way we
design, build and operate will work for everyone.

PRagetil



Contents

Clarifying Aims (Step 1)
Q1 - Aims of the Project
Q2 - Effects on staff, communities and the built environment
Evidence Base (Step 2)
Q3 ~ Data related to level of diversity and inclusivity
Options Matrix
Impact (Step 3)
Q4 - Risks of negative impact on people
Q5 - Positive impacts
Consultation (Step 4}
Q6 — How has consultation shaped the work

Informed Decision Making (Step 5)

Q7 - Assessment based decision

Action Planning (Step 6)

Q8. — Actions to address negative impacts

Sign Off (Step 7)
Document signatures and revision date

Page 2 of 21
Page 42

NetworkRail
T

Page 3
Page 4

Page 6
Page 7

Page 17
Page 19

Page19
Page 20
Page 20

Page 21



Step 1: Clarifying Aims

Q1. What are the aims of this project/piece of work?

1.

4.

The project aims to improve public safety by removing the conflict between
speeding trains and users of this public footpath crossing the railway. The
project will provide safer access for the public including vulnerable users
e.g. children, older and disabled people.

The National Level Crossing Risk Reduction Programme {(NLCRRP) is a
required output from the Office of Rail and Road (ORR) to achieve a 25%

reduction in level crossing system risk (3.3 Fatality Weighted Index (FWI))
by 2019.

Pilgrims Way crossing is on the route of a pedestrian public right-of-way
and has been identified for closure based on the All Level Crossing Risk
Model (ALCRM) risk assessment, FWI 0.017553621 and recorded
incidents of misuse.

The NLCRRP aims to gain the support of the local authorities, third party
stakeholders and the local community to the proposed solution

Page 3 of 21
age 43




Q2. Could this work impact on people? If yes, explain how.

Yes. Currently, the level crossing has wooden stiles to accommodate the public
and is accessed by vulnerable users, with approximately 170 trains per day at a
speed of 50-60mph.

Closure of the level crossing to remove the risks can only be achieved through
extinguishment of the public footpath or by diversion of the existing route through
provision of an overbridge/underpass. This has the potential to impact on users.

Residential housing is located to the south east and south west of the crossing
with Otford Railway Station being located to the north west of the crossing. A
wooded area which opens up into Chalk Pit recreation ground is located to the
north east of the crossing. The tracks are lower than the surrounding land on the
Eastern side. A location plan can be found below (plan 1).

The route across Pilgrims Way level crossing links the housing on the east to the
village centre and the railway station.

The complete closure of the crossing therefore has some potential to impact on
accessibility for the community although, as discussed later, there is restricted
accessibility from existing infrastructure. Significant development in the area are:

e Otford Railway Station which lies approximately 100m to the North of the
crossing. For some of the residents on Tudor Drive the level crossing offers
the most direct route to the Railway station.

¢ The Scout Hut which lies approximately 100m to the Notth of the crossing.
For some of the residents on Hopfield Close the level crossing offers the
most direct route to the scout hut.

« Otford Medical Practice lies approximately 600m to the North West of the
crossing. The most direct access to this for the majority of dwellings does
not require the use of the crossing.

¢ Other developments in the area are Offord Village Centre includes Russell
House Independent School, Otfford Primary School, St Bartholomew's
Church, Village Halls and local shops. Further to the west 2 further
churches; Otford Methodist Church and The Most Holy Trinity Roman
Catholic Church, and the local library. The most direct access to these for
the majority of the dwellings does not require the use of the crossing.

Page 4 of 21
Page 44




ns550.7Y |@Aaa]
PAT LG

el P00

LZ o g abeq

syeH aben -,

—
L'

e —— i -
AN enUoMBUBUCHBULOIUPUL] (LT3} UOIBULOIU)
puiy aul Prejuoa asead ‘juawnoop Gupuig Ajeba & Jop dew e asnRbag

‘ue|d UoIe30] — T UB|d

Page 45



Access to the east is from Tudor Drive and is via a narrow, unlit pathway with
some overhanging vegetation. Due to the differences in land level users have to
negotiate a series of steps which leads down to the crossing. Access to the West
is via a narrow, made, unlit pathway which leads from Hopfield Close and from
the Railway Station car park.

The pathways are made but may become muddy and slippery in poor weather,
particularly during leaf fall season, due to overhanging vegetation and the
vegetation growing at the sides of the paths.

Step 2: The Evidence Base

Q3. Summarise what data we have about the diversity of the people potentially
impacted by this work and any research on the issues effecting their inclusion.

When considering any site, the preferred solution is to remove the public interface
with the railway which will eliminate risk of pedestrians being hit by a train. This
would involve closing the crossing to users, so the next step would be to identify
whether a suitable altemative route is available.

Closure of the crossing would cause pedestrians to use existing alternative routes
and crossing points. These alternative routes will increase the distance users have
to travel to cross the railway, typically by up to 100m. The local authority has
advised they will not support an extinguishment or a diversion order at this
crossing.

A number of options have been considered as set out in table 1 below. These
considerations have led to the consideration of a pedestrian overbridge for this
site.

Page 6 of 21
Page 46



Table 1

OPTIONS

DESCRIPTION

CONSTRAINTS/VIABILITY

Upgrade to automated
waming systems

The provision of a fuily
automated waming system
would not change the current
usage of the crossing sois a
method of reducing instead of
removing the public safety risk.

Miniature Stop Light technology is dependent
on the signalling systems in the area and can
prove expensive to install and maintain. The
addition of Miniature Stop Lights or other
audible warning systems will not mitigate risk
from misuse. Users can mistakenly attempt to
cross the crossing whilst a red light remains
showing after a train has passed that is veering
a second approach train.

Due to the proximity of Otford Railway Station
due to the type of technology used the lights
would likely remain red whilst trains stand
stationary at the station.

Furthermore an audible warning would be
required along with lights to ensure partially
sighted users are aware of a trains approach.
Whistle boards, until recently, were present at
the crossing meaning trains sounded their
horns on their approach to the crossing to warn
any users of their approach. Due to a noise
abatement notice these have been removed
and a temporary speed restriction placed on
the line. This option will not be favoured by
lineside neighbours as the audible warning
noises would be reintroduced to the crossing.

Extinguishment and
Diversion

An altemnative crossing point in

the area could allow the closure
of the existing level crossing by
creating a suitable diversionary
route for users.

The closest alternative crossing on the railway
is via Station Road overbridge which is located
approximately 200m to the north of the
crossing. The length of diversion or the amount
of inconvenience to users is difficult to quantify
as different users will have a wide range of
start and end points.

These altemative routes will increase the
distance users have to travel to cross the
railway, typically by up to 100m via the local
public footpath network.

This route is the current fully accessible route
and comprised of relatively wide tarmac
pathway that leads from Tudor Way, past the
Scout Hut to Station Road. The local authority
would not support an extinguishment at this
crossing.

Page 7 of 21
age 47




OPTIONS DESCRIPTION CONSTRAINTS/VIABILITY
Provision of Lifts and Mechanical lifts would be This location is not suited to the provision of
Footbridge required on both sides of the lifts because there is no staff presence 24

crossing with a bridge structure
spanning between to provide an
accessible and safe route for

pedestrians to cross the railway

hours a day which would result in increased
response time of employees to solve issues
and help users. The safety and security of
users would be compromised if there were a
problem with the operation of the lifts such as
power failure, vandalism or antisocial
behaviour. This level crossing site has
experienced incidents of vandalism and
trespass and general antisocial behaviour (as
detailed later on); hence this option has been
discounted. Anti-social behaviour was also
raised as an issue at the public information
meeting.

Provision of a
footbridge with steps
and ramps

A footbridge with steps and
ramps will offer a safe crossing
point over the railway.

Considerable third party land purchase on both
sides of the railway is required to
accommodate a ramped structure (see outline
plan in Appendix 1). It would also impact on
lineside equipment including telecoms and
signalling equipment which can be expensive
to relocate.

There would be an impact on visual amenity,
even with screening, particularly for the
residential properties on the east of the railway
as considerable trees and vegetation would be
required to be removed. ltis likely there would
be a greater number of objections to a planning
application for this type of proposal.

Ramps would increase the diversion distance
for users negotiating the crossing by around
240m. Good practice guidance, including BS
8300, states that where a ramp is too high, it
may he unacceptably tiring for self-propelled
wheelchair users and people with walking
difficulties, even with landings provided.

Users negotiating a ramped footbridge at this
location would have further to travel compared
to the existing alternative route that is currently
available. For these reasons this option has
been discounted.

Provision of a
footbridge with steps

A footbridge with steps will offer
a safe crossing point over the
railway

There is sufficient land available either side of
the crossing for the installation of a stepped
footbridge (see outline plan in Appendix 1).
This solution has the potential to impact access
for some users. However, it will remove the
public safety risk and offer a safe crossing
point.

Page 8 of 21
Page 48




OPTIONS

DESCRIPTION

CONSTRAINTS/VIABILITY

Provision of an
underpass

A concrete pedestrian tunnel
under the railway with graded
footpath approaches would be
required to provide an accessible
and safe route for pedestrians to
cross the railway.

The installation of an underpass at the crossing
would require considerable land purchase
either side of the railway to create the
necessary footpath approach gradients
including local residential properties. The
topography of the surrounding area would also
give risk to flooding of the underpass which
would require additional maintenance
measures.

Ramps or graded approaches would increase
the diversion distance for users to negotiate
the crossing by over 200m.

Underpasses may not be preferred by users
and residents as they can attract antisocial
behaviour.

The following data has been reviewed in considering how diverse and inclusive the
project has been:

Alternative access routes

The nature of the eastern approach to the crossing dictates that access to the
crossing is not available for all potential users. Initially the footpath leads from Tudor
Drive between two dwellings with it being only approx. 1 metre wide with vegetation
growing along each side and bare soil present in places (see plan 3 below). This will
likely make the footpath muddy and slippery in poor weather, particularly during the
leaf fall season. There are cracks in the tarmac caused by roots from nearby trees
and vegetation making the surface uneven in places. This section of pathway is on
third party land. A wooden stile is present at the Network Rail boundary followed by a
series of steps downs to the crossing to overcome the differences in land levels
between the east and west of the railway.

The current accessible route from Tudor Drive to Station Road is via the public
footpath to the east of the railway and the Scout Hut. As shown on plan 4 below the
route is wider than the access to the level crossing at approx. 2 metres wide. The
pathway leads around the edge of the Scout Hut and links up to the main road by
Station Road Overbridge. The pathway is comprised of tarmac and is relatively flat
with very little change in level from Tudor Drive to Station Road.

This route adds approximately 100 metres to a journey compared to taking the route
over Pilgrims Way level crossing and is likely already taken by users who cannot
negotiate the current footpath and crossing configuration. This distance is less than
the length of travel if a ramped footbridge was to be introduced (see plan 2 below for
differences in route length).

Otford Station is comprised of two platforms. Platform 1 is accessed through the
station buildings and Platform 2 is accessed via a stepped footbridge. The access
route for those unable to negotiate a stepped footbridge is via Station Road

overbridge and then a ramped access down to platform level, which is located along

Page 9 of 21
age 49




the footpath to the Scout Hut (see plan 5).

For users travelling from the Tudor Drive area accessing Platform 2, the shorter route
is via the Scout Hut pathway rather than across Pilgrims Way level crossing.

A stepped footbridge would still maintain access to Otford Railway Station and the
village centre.

Page 10 of 21
Page 50




Plan 2 — Alternative Route Plan.

Watking route to Otford Train
Station via the Scout Hut,
Approximate distance 450 metres.

| Walking route to Otford Train Station
via Pilgrms Way Level Crossing.
Approximate distance 350 metres

Page 11 of 21
age 51



Plan 3 — Plan showing the footpath route via Pilgrims Way Level Crossing.

Page 12 of 21
Page 52



Plan 4 — Plan showing the faotpath route from Tudor Drive to Station Road via the Scout.

PpageEs’



Plan 4 — Plan showing the pedestrain routes from the Ticket Office to Platform 2 at Otford Station.

Step free route Irom Otford Station
Tickatl Office to Platform 2
Apprmximata distaneca 400 matres

Stepped route from Otford Station
Ticket Othica to Platform 2.
Approximata distonce 60 metres.

Page 14 of 21
Page 54



Reported incidents of misuse

Records show that there were 22 incidents of misuse, trespass and near misses reported
between 1998 and 2015. Of these, seven were reported as near misses and one was a
fatality where a person was struck and killed by a train at the crossing. The incidents
from the last four years are shown below.

DATE INCIDENT

16/03/18 | Misuse — Three youths ran across the line in front of a train

21/0514 | Vandalism — Train stuck a bike on the crossing

10/07/14 | Contractor working unsafely

18/04/14 | Vandalism — children throwing stones
11/0713 Misuse by children

Fatality — 2B567 reported striking a person at Pilgrims Way

A footpath crossing on approach to Otford

21/04/13 Near miss with a pedestrian

08/10/13 Near miss with a pedestrian
22/09/12 Misuse by children

31/12/11 Youths trespassing on the track

30/09/11 Misuse — pedestrian crossed as train approached crossing

Information from Otford & Shoreham Ward National Census data

The 2011 census data relates to the 4,595 residents closest to the crossing. The data
relates to age, health and ethnicity. it recorded that there were:

* 1,090 people under the age of 18 in this area

¢ 1,306 people aged 60 and above

s 236 people whose health limited their activities a lot

» 386 people whose health limited their activities a little

Level crossing 9-day camera survey.

A census was carried out over a nine day period in July 2014 which consisted of two
weekends with the intervening weekdays.

The census shows that there were 1,554 movements across the crossing in nine days as
expected due to lack of accessibility no wheelchair or mobility scooters recorded using
the crossing. This gives an average of 172 movements per day.

There were a total of 348 children recorded during the census period. Of these 149 were
unaccompanied. This equates to 9.6% of total movements for the census period.

"PageEs!




There were eight pushchairs/pram movements in nine days which represents 0.6% of
total movements for the census period.
There were two cyclists recorded using the crossing which represents less than 1% of
total movements for the census period.

The weather recorded during the census was as follows:

DAY AM PM

Saturday 5" July 2014 Mild and Light Rain Mild and Cloudy
Sunday 6" July 2014 Mild and Light Rain Mild and Cloudy
Monday 7" July 2014 Mild and Clear Mild and Clear
Tuesday 8" July 2014 Mild and Cloudy Mild and Clear
Wednesday 9" July 2014 Mild and Cloudy Mild and Clear
Thursday 10" July 2014 Mild and Light Rain Mild and Cloudy
Friday 11" July 2014 Mild and Cloudy Mild and Cloudy
Saturday 12" July 2014 Mild and Cloudy Mild and Clear
Sunday 13" July 2014 Mild and Light Rain Mild and Cloudy

Page 16 of 21
Page 56




Step 3: Impact

Q4. Given the evidence listed at step 2, what potentially negative impact could this work
have on people who share protected characteristics.

Protected Explain the potential negative impact
Characteristic
Disability Yes | On the eastern approach to the crossing the footpath leads

from Tudor Drive between two dwellings with it being only
approx. 1 metre wide. There are cracks in the tarmac caused
by roots from nearby trees and vegetation making the surface
uneven in places. A wooden stile is present which is owned
by Network Rail and highlights the Network Rail boundary
line; it is then followed be a series of steps downs to the
crossing to overcome the differences in land levels between
the east and west of the railway.

The western approach is relatively flat and level with a narrow
(approx. 1 to 1.5m wide) made pathway that is unlit and has
overhanging vegetation. A wooden stile is present at the
Network Rail boundary.

It is considered that these access routes are not currently
accessible for wheelchair/mobility scooter users due to the
stiles and stepped changes in levels.

Replacing the leve! crossing with a stepped footbridge could
create a further obstacle to and have a negative impact on
people with restricted mobility.

The footbridge design includes the following features:
e Tactile paving strips
e Warm to touch, visually contrasting handrails
o Visually contrasting stair nosings
* Anti-slip surfacing

Replacing the level crossing with a footbridge with these
features would have a positive impact for those people with
hearing and visual impairment as well as some people with
mobility impairment. These users would benefit from an
improved and safer experience than the existing level
crossing. The wooden stiles would be removed as part of the
proposed scheme.

PoageB?




| Age

Yes

The introduction of a stepped footbridge could have an
impact on people with this protected characteristic who may
find steps difficult to negotiate. Although the footbridge would
provide a safer user experience than the current level
Crossing.

The design of the steps is in accordance with version 4 of the
Department for Transport's “Guidance for Accessible Train
Station Design for Disabled People”.

Pregnancy
/maternity

Yes

The provision of a stepped footbridge would have the
potential to exclude people with prams and pushchairs.

The current crossing configuration means that users with
pushchairs/prams would have to lift them over wooden stile
and steps. Routes are in existence which are relatively flat
and easier to negotiate via the Scout Hut, even though this
route is slightly longer (approx. 100m} with the time it would
take to negotiate the stiles and steps it is likely that the
alternate route would be quicker and safer.

Race

No

Use of the crossing is not required to access local community
centres. In view of this, there is no impact on this protected
characteristic.

Religion or
belief

Mo

The crossing can be used to access the village centre where
St Bartholomew’s Church is located, as it the shortest route to
the residential properties on Tudor Drive. The provision of a
stepped footbridge does not preclude access to the place of
worship. Suitable alternative routes are available for users of
this protected characteristic who are unable to negotiate a
stepped footbridge.

Gender

No

There is no impact on this protected characteristic

Sexual
orientation

No

There is no impact on this protected characteristic

Marriage/Civil
Partnership

No

There is no impact on this protected characteristic

Gender
reassignment

No

There is no impact on this protected characteristic

Page 18 of 21
Page 58




Q5.What extra could you do to have a positive impact on diversity and inclusion?

Although Network Rail is not eliminating any previous existing step-free access,
however, we are increasing the effort that older or disabled users of the new structure
will have to make to cross. Consequently, the project team are investigating the
feasibility of incorporating seating into the design, with this being provided at either end
of the structure.

A cycle gutter could be incorporated into each staircase directly under the handrails if
required.

Network Rail has a target to have a 'net positive contribution to biodiversity’ this means
that we will try to improve what we have taken away. We will work with Sevenoaks
Council and Kent County Council to determine if any highways improvement works are
required along the diversion routes.

Step 4: Consultation

Q6. How has consultation with those who share a protected characteristic informed your
work?

Who was Changes made as a result of consultation
consulted? '

Public Information | A public information event was held on the 14" January 2014 in
Event Otford Village Hall (which is fully accessible) and was well attended
with approximately 200 local residents and users attending. The
approximate age range of attendees was 18 to 80. A few of the
attendees were using walking sticks.

Two options were put on the table for a diversion over the existing
footbridge on the station and a new stepped footbridge near to the
crossing. The stepped footbridge close to the crossing was the
preferred option but they were unhappy that a new footbridge would
overlook their properties and that they would prefer the crossing to
remain as it is today.

Parish Council A meeting with the Parish Council was held on the 4" November
Meeting 2014 and the members were happy with the idea of a stepped
footbridge.

We also attended a formal Parish Council meeting on the 10"

! This could include our staff networks, local users, the BEAP (re disability), local faith leaders etc.

Page 19 of 21
Igage 5



November 2014 and approximately 15 local residents attended who
had Issues with the footbridge as the plan seemed to show their
properties would be overlooked. It was arranged that a separate
site meeting would be held with those residents to take on board
their concerns.

Site meeting with | A number of meetings with local residents were held:
local residents 15" December 2014 with residents whose properties would have
been overiooked with the plans at that time.

24"™ February 2015 with other residents from Tudor Drive who were
unhappy with the bridge moving 10m down from the crossing.

Screening has been added to the bridge design to prevent
properties from being overlooked.

Step 5: Informed Decision-Making

Q7. In light of the assessment above, what is your decision? Please provide a rationale

From the evidence collected and in consideration of the site constraints the proposal for
a stepped footbridge should be developed further, The design development will
incorporate good practice design features and feedback from stakeholder consultations.
The rationale for this decision is:-

+ Extinguishment or diversion of the public right-of-way would address risk
concerns but is unlikely to be promoted by the local authority.

« Lifts would not be suitable in operational terms for this location.

* Ramped bridge or underpass options do not have land availability and would
have significant amenity and cost impacts. They would also result in further for
users to travel compared to the existing alternative routes available.

* A stepped footbridge can be delivered within current land ownership and would
remove the current risks. Alternative routes exist of a suitable standard for
people unable to use a stepped footbridge. Discussions are to be held with the
local authority for possible improvements/upgrades to this route.

Step 6: Action Planning

Q8. What actions will be taken to address any potential negative impacts and deliver
positive impacts?

Action By when By whom
Meeting with Kent County Council Rights of NR Liabilities
Way to discuss Diversion Order

Hold discussions with Kent County Council NR Liabilities
and Sevenoaks Council about possible

Page 20 of 21
Page 60




improvements to existing alternative routes.

Step 7: Sign off

Name

Position

Signed

Date

Margaret Hickish
Equality Act review

Access & Inclusion Manager

Wi tdl |

15/12115

Step 8: Add an action to your plan setting out how you will monitor this DIA

Revision Date: Not applicable

Page 21 of 21
age 61




Page 62



APPEND 3 (<)

FRPENETRCE

TO THE RAIL CROSSING DIVERSION ORDER IN RESPECT OF:
FOOTPATH 5R49;

IN THE PARISH OF OTFORD, SEVENOAKS;

AND WHICH PASSES OVER PILGRIMS WAY LEVEL CROSSING.

The information provided below is intended in addition to, and support of, the Diversion Application
made on 13" July 2015,

Additional Information

Following submission of our Application in July 2015, we have provided further information below
relating to Network Rail's safety case in pursuing the diversion of the public footpath at this location
and diverting to the proposed stepped footbridge.

The latest Risk Assessment (RA) available at the time of submission had been carried out on 26"
March 2014; a more recent RA has been carried out 12" October 2015.

The most recent RA has increased the risk score from a rating of C3 to C2; however it is Network
Rail's view that this does not adequately represent the risk at this level crossing due to the presence
of Temporary Speed Restriction {TSR) on the line.

The permitted line speed over Pilgrims Way Level Crossing is 60mph; due to the TSR trains are
currently restricted to 45mph; this TSR was imposed solely due to the insufficient sighting available
at the level crossing.

As stated in our application Network Rail had whistle boards installed in order to mitigate the
insufficient sighting at this level crossing. However, following service of a Noise Abatement Notice,
Network Rail were forced to remove them, thus making the level crossing non-compliant. The
resulfing impact was the implementation of the TSR.

In order to put the risk at Pilgrims Way Level Crossing into perspective we are able to rate level
crossings against one another; at its current score {C2 with TSR) Pilgrims Way is ranked 29" of 561
level crossings on the South East Route. When only considering those level crossings which cater for
public footpaths, Pilgrims Way ranks at 1* of 278. Nationally we have 2,867 footpath level crossings;
Pilgrims Way ranks at 20™ or within the top 1% in the country.

Sighting Distances & Level Crossing Timings

Due to known use by vulnerable users {elderly, children, encumbered users etc.) the crossing time
allowed for users to pass over and clear the crossing for assessment purposes is 13.5 seconds.

Page 63



The available sighting at the level crossing is insufficient in all directions.

When crossing from Eveley Road/Well Road to Tudor Drive, looking right {away from Otford Station)
there is only 225 metres of available sighting of approaching trains to a user. This gives users roughly
5 seconds between first seeing an approaching train (at its furthest point) and that train passing over
the level crossing (this is 8 seconds less than required to safely pass over the crossing). If trains were
travelling at the correct linespeed {being 60mph) they would only have 3.75 seconds.

When looking left (towards Otford Station) at the same point, the available sighting is less at 222
metres; giving users a sighting time of 4.9 seconds with trains travelling at 45mph and only 3.7
seconds if trains were travelling at 60mph.

When crossing from to Tudor Drive towards Eveley Road/Well Road and looking left (away from
Otford Station) the available sighting is 240 metres; providing 5.3 seconds of warning at 45mph and
4 seconds at 60mph. When looking right from the same point the available sighting is 292 metres;
providing 6.4 seconds of sighting at 45mph and 4.9 seconds at 60mph.

Given that the crossing time is approximately 13.5 seconds for vulnerable users the sighting
distances in all directions ranges between 5 ~ 7 seconds short of the time required to safely pass
over the crossing when trains are travelling at 45mph (this shortfall is increased if trains were to be
travelling at 60mph).

When crossing in both directions and looking towards Otford station, the sighting lines for users are
obstructed by the station and station features; as these are permanent structures the sighting
cannot be improved. The sighting is further reduced when trains are stopped at the station
platforms.

Given the proximity to Otford station there are concerns that users become complacent when using
the crossing with ‘regular’ users (which it is likely the majority of the users of this level crossing are)
assuming they know which trains are stopping and non-stopping services; thus they might think it is
safe to cross even when a train is approaching, incorrectly thinking it is due to stop at the platform.

It is also possible that the station itself creates a distraction to users; this can by way of
announcements and commuters on the platforms. There is potential for people standing on the
platforms to obscure the available sighting further, encouraging users to cross over and take
unnecessary risks. Announcements made at the station may also distract users and affect their
concentration when looking and listening for approaching trains.

A further issue, given its proximity to the station, is users are seen to be lulled into a false sense of
security when a train is stopped at the platforms. A situation can occur whereby a user will see a
train stopped at the station and assume it is safe to cross, not anticipating the passage of a second
train. Otford Station has both stopping and non-stopping services passing through it and thus it is
possible for a second train to pass over the level crossing either at the same time or shortly after the
first train. Users may also believe that an approaching train is due to stop at the station and thus
cross, when in fact it is a non-stopping service.

Page 64



Whilst some vegetation clearance could be carried out to assist sighting this would not be to any
great extent and sighting would remain insufficient due to Otford Station in one direction and track
curvature in the other.

Recorded Incidents of Misuse

The Council have requested further details in respect of the misuse, near misses and fatalities at this
location.

For ease we have collated a table {Appendix B1) showing the date of the incident and all narrative
recorded for that incident.

We are unable to provide any further information on incidents listed (e.g. witness statements, driver
statements) due to Data Protection.

incidents on Network Rail owned Footbridges

In order to understand the risk to pedestrians of moving them from the level crossing to a stepped
footbridge we have requested details of incidents occurring on Network Rail bridges over the past 5
years.

There have been 10 recorded incidents nationally of slips/trips/falls in the past 5 years; there have
been no recorded incidents in Kent or Sussex,

Of these 10 incidents 2 are reported to be persons under the influence of alcohol and a further 2 are
reported to be due to bridge defects; this leaves 6 incidents of ‘genuine’ slips/trips over a 5 year
period.

Please see Appendix B2 for full details.

Whilst slips and trips occur on footbridges, when these do occur the injuries sustained are far less
serious than if a person were to trip on a level crossing; which could easily result in a fatality or life-
threatening injury.

It should also be noted that roughly two years ago (unfortunately we do not have the exact dates)
two members of the public fell whilst using the stiles at the level crossing; the removal of the level
crossing would alse result in removal of the stiles and thus prevent any future falls incurred on the
stiles.

Closing Comments

The current leve! crossing has stiles on either side, together with steps on one side, which users will
no longer have to climb over. The route wili be available for use 24 hours a day, without the need to
stop and wait far oncoming trains to pass.

Page 65



The main concerns for Network Rail at this crossing are the insufficient sighting, high level of use and
misuse, coupled with the high level of vulnerable users, in particular unaccompanied children and
elderly. The proposed solution of a foothridge with steps would remove the risk of serious injury to
users.

Nicola Mee

Liability Negotiations Adviser

27" July 2016

Page 66



-gjes se uebe yo passed sem alipuq au se ‘pasnnbal

SEM UO0(j0® Jayun) ON "IN0 paiues sem uoloadsur uy "awn) jey) e Ino pawed Buiaq sem }Jom ou SE asiig paypou
SulRd] 1SIAA YINOS ‘umouyun s1 Anful joexs ay] “jendsoy s,061099) 1S 0} juam pue Ba| Yo} ey yorujs aysg ‘Yo passed
usag pey yoym abpuq Aesodws) au) Jo uonIas 1aMo| aY) 1B sdajs gL uMOp |19} Jqnd ay) Jo Jaquiaw e GLgo I

[2e251/£2 DOWY]
‘suossad umouyun Aq yo paddu uaay

aaey o} paseadde pey ade) ay) inq '199jep ay) jo ajdoad Sujwem ade) usaq pey asay) Jeuy) paiels Joell N0 'SLZZ 1B
dals mau e pajy pue papuaje yoes) poO 'ssaaoxd ay) uy Ba) uayouq e Buuie)sns ‘yBnosy) uaje} aaey AW plyo € Jey)

pue anua) Aunwwo ay) slisoddo abpuqioo) sy uo uayoig sem dajs e jey) Bunels pasadal sem wodas e ZpzL IV

‘Ajlen BjeQ U0 MBIA @SSY WOy Joun 0) 18s aalbap Anlur £L0Z/L0/91

‘pauleIsns sauniu au) uo a9jod Woly B|qE|IBAR LONEBLLIOWI JUMNY ON

*Saul| Ylaq woly paljlj Sem uolned sy} Siy) “auy| ay) jo JEa|D alam jpuuosiad

Aouablawa ||e 1ey) paulyuod sem 1 00:0Z Je pue [eyidsoy ay) o) sa)doday Aq S1nos ua sem Ajenses oyl 9SGl I
AeMmilEd 3Y) JO JE|D PAAOW UBaq pey AJ[ENSED ay) SB uonnes e o} paxe|as sem abeyoolq aul ay) Op6L Iy

"BUDIS BY) |B pepUE| AJuUBjNqE JiE Ue BEiGL 1Y

‘prey Jueoselpe ue 0} BUIIS BY) WO PIACLIBI URaq pey ‘alews) e *Aued palnful ay) 1ey) pauodal sem 3 £E6L W
'§599) dn ay)

ul BuiA| sem oignd jo Jaquiow paunful sy -alis uo paalle ‘Jeis Aepn/d Aq papoose ‘seomaes Aouablaws ayy LLIGL IV
‘pasodwt sem abexoojq aul B $6:8L IV

*SAISSWAY) painful pey pue [Euuod

Jo yuou abpuq 1531 8y} woiy auy) auj OJUO U3|[E} pEY uosiad B Jey) papodal 8010 Aemojjes) ¥ ssumwng LS8l 1!

playsues

yiesN

[UUOI|

X0SSOM| 00180

selem|  00:Lbgl

puejloog, 00981

L L0Z-des-80
N~

©
()
(@]
@
o

110g-Bny-0z

LLoz-Bny-g1L

ajeq jusag



"snoiotdsns-uou se Juap|aul ay) patead) Aay )

Iy Siy Uo SPEBYIBAC BU} JIY PUE }OBJ) BY] OO (|8} 8Y PuE Wiy Jo pjoy deay jou pIned Ing wiy bnea pusuyb

siH "paddnys pue soueeq siy 150 84 “yunp )spym jadesed abpuq ay) Buiquigo sem ajew ay) jey) pabodas 418 syl
‘pawnsal sem Bunpiom [ewlou pue dn uamb sem uonelos| O aul €150 1V

‘pajj@dued sem uoie|os) Asuafilaw] Oy au) #0:10 1B PUE pa|[@oued sem uonelos) Aouabiawg D oY) Z0'b0 IV
'sanpng Ol Se umop

poolg "pauedap ||e pey yels Louabiawa ay) pue auis Jo Jeapd atam jels Aousbiaws e yey) pasiape OIY U 00:F0 IV
yels

souenqe auy) Ag a)IS WOJ) PEA0WB) U3aq mou pey uosiad painlu Sy JEY) PESIAPE WOW USPS3IIIM 3Ui 0S:E0 IV
‘swing |eoipadns Gulaieoal Ajuo se pauodal

sem uossad ay) ‘anuaae J81S3oN0|IS) |e aouengque Gulem e o) wiy Buinow aojaq uONIPUOD SIY asijige)s o) Buill) pue
uossad ay} uo GunpIom aJaMm pUe B]IS UO S49M JOJOOP B PUB SOIPSWRIBL ay) JEY) PASIADE WO USPSA|IA B4} 0C:E0 IV
*(Aluo uonoey [9831(] ) "SBUY| UOPUOT YHON

ay) JO pUE U0 JUSWSAOW PAsSUOYINE PEY PUB a)IsS UD SEM O|Y 8U) PUE PasiApe SBM D08 TN ASIQWSAA 3UL SZ:E0 IV
‘NS uo sem O pajuiodde ay] saoinas Aoualfuawg pue a1jod

"L'd au) yum dn Gunaaw sem pue pua YUoN Bu) Je [2uun) 183G Yed 18 IS U0 sem WOW UBPSB|Iipm 8yl 0L:E0 IV
‘Bul| uo uossad e punoy

peyY 18245 3iEd JO YUON 3170 8y} uo Buyiawos papodal pey oym yeis 1'9S asiApe DOSTIN A8(qwap syl £0:E0 W
‘EL/88Z1 QYD Sem Jaquunu 30UaIaJa) 92||04 At | "ESIE PEOY [BAQ ‘Uspwes) 8y} ul

abipuq e wouy uajie) pey oym uosiad e usaq aaey AW aJBY) JEY) 80 19| SY) Wol) Paniaoal sem Hodas e Op:z0 1Y

‘aBpuq)oo} WoJ) (13} SjBW ‘JUBPIJIE UOSIa :85nen

‘pasiape Jajjleubis 19ang ainised "pawnsal Bunpom

[ELWLIOU pUe Yo'} 3y JO JES|D |8 a01j0d apIsiaquing] £1:90 Jv “Jea pauwuyuod ijun | g4z Bupioy to|eubls Jeans
aiised ‘yoed) ay) Jespo Anj o} ¥o0Q AqswuUS) o) [enpiaipu pasniu) sy upm Bupjem asam aoljod apisiaquiny umoy
AgQswue) o] pJEMIO) MOU Gag | PUe 3O} BU} JO JBS(2 JelS PISIADE SJUBINGWY SPUBRPIW 1SBT §0:90 1Y OB JO JB3|D
aiam |ENPIAIPUI aY] PUE Jels Jel) PasSIAPe 30104 apistaquing] Z0:90 IV 'Ob J21 PaSIAPE aJam d] g pue anol-us pue
pasiape sem WOW a4} 06-50 1y "paddo)s ulewsa o} au| ayi painbas pue Aempel ay) uo saiped ||€ jo sinogeataym
8U) 10j JUNGJJR JOU PINOT INQ 'S9H | JO JeaJ Ul 'paajoaul uossad ay) puno) pey Aay) ey pepodal a01jo4 aplsiaguung
‘90096 L€ JoJ 8)IS UO HE)S aoue|nquwy SPUBIPIW 1583 SE:60 IV [ENPIAIPUL 8Y) JOj YdIeas sy} Ul 8d1jod apisiaquiny
Bupsisse sem Jaaup ay) pue abpuqjoo} ay) Jo Ayuwia Ul poo)s sem gggi "Ja)jeubls ay) pajoeuoo pue puels

B 0} 8wWo2 pue ||ed Aouafisawa paniaoal pey Gog1 JO Jaaup aul SE Juapul ay) Jo aseme 1a|jeudis ay) pue pasnpe
Jajjeubis J9aug ainised 260 1Y "PasIApe Jajjleubis anised ‘puodsal jou pip J9AUp BY) Jng (Hodily Jajsayouey

0) sadioylaald) g1:50) 991 0l spew sem Jseopeouq Asuabiawa ue pue Bupuajie aJuejNQWE apISJaqUINH

LG Ja) aoljod 'obpugloo) sy) woup usye) pey ay jey) paje)s ap ‘(sodsa] jo Jeal ayj Jesu) AQSUNG) 193G 19NeN

10 1281 3U) |e apISaU|| SEm Oym 3jew B woyj podss e paniadal pey Asy) Jey) adljod apisiaquny Aq Pastape 9Z:50 IV

uar uspwed 1S9M YUON uopue  00-5E-20

umol AQSWUD|  u9}SET YUON UOPUOT|  00:02:G0

L 102-AON-ZL

Page 68

LL0Z-dog-#1



‘[endsoy eipuexaly Uaan) o) WIY aye) o} Pojjes SEm aduB|NYWe
ue pue yoeq siy w sujed jo pauie|duwiod a ‘uonei | 1e abpugloo) ay o} siels ay) uo padd)s Jabuassed ajew v

‘paysiqe)se JoN :asnen
‘ugiipuoed poof ul )i punoy pue abpuqioo; syl pajoadsur Jebeuey suonessdp) agop ayl

uoyesg

‘UMOLNUN S3LNJUI Y)iM SOUBINGUWE AQ SUSDS|T pug [[DMWY 3JEAA

8] WoJy panowsl sem uosied ay) papodsr pue pusjie 0] payse pue pasiape sem Jabeuepy suonesadQ ajqon v
‘algnd sy} Jo sisquaws Jayjo Aq pajsisse sem (uosiad painful) 4| 8yl "Buissoin
|aaan asepn Jeau abpuqgjoo) apisdn ay) jo Led umop Buljje) passaulim sem aljqnd ay) Jo Jequisw e SINoH £0:v L 1Y

Aeunju) aopey uyor o) Ajie} Jay pue |6 ay) 400) Yoiym pajied SEm 2oUBNGLUE Ue ‘Le)s UOHe]S
Aq papinodd pry 1s)14 "peaysuo) Jay o) yseb daap e pue spuey yjoq o) sazelb pue sjno pauieisns pib ay) proxQ
1e yued sea Aejs Buo| ay) woup abpugioo) eyl Buissosd 1s|iym |9} pue paddis Ajwey Jay yum Bulaaes Ape| Bunof y

"2INONIISEYU BY) JO pasealp suossad

Jayjo e pue uosiad paunlu) aui Jo |[eaowas Bumo|o} '| LOZ 18 pawnsas Guppom [eWIoN "saul| 8y} uo Buissedsasy mou
alam woym Jo |2 'suosiad sByjo Auam Aeiewxaidde jo Auedwod ay) ul sem uosiad painlu) a4) 1eY) pauodal sem )|
‘Papusiie a2lj0d aNYSHIOA YINOS PUE (9EG'I5Y) @0ljod Wodsues] ysiug

‘891AI85 AOUBINGUE SY| pue pax)oolq aiam saul| yiog Aunful epjue ue Guuieisns pue mojaq Aemjiel ay) cluo Buye)
‘BuISS01a |2A5] payiom Josn aue jeogAius4 aty ul abpuq)ooy ay) woly |8y uosiad pajeuqaul A|GUpLEs B OP6L 1Y

-Ba) pue uys W6u pue
100) yj@| o) Buisinug pauieisns 4O "9SEIB)S ay) umop }sJi} peay Bulje) Asuind e abpugyoo) Aelodway uo (|2} JOW

"pawnsai pey Bupnjiom [euuou pue OZ .0 B palo)sal Sem JUaLUND Uoljoed) sy} ‘b L0 1B

saul| ay} Jo Jeapd pauuuod aiam Je|s seanasg Aouafsaw] [y eidsoy 0) padaauond pue suy a1} WOJ) PRISACIa) SEM
uosiad ay N0 PaLIEd SEM JUSLIND UONDEL) BY) Jo Jo-youms Aousblaws ue Jaye uosiad ayy o} papuane sJpaweied
‘nowawnog Je sbuipis ajppiy sy} Jo peol Z'oN uo Jooj-H oy ul BuiA] sem vonsanb

ul uostad a3y} 1eY) GZao 1e pauodas oym 'papualie pue pasiape sem sabeueyy suonesad) ajiqop ey pomiapN syl
‘Bunf) arem £ay) yoym ul uoljisod ) woty saow Jou pnoa

Aay) ataym JuaIxe UB 0] SIARSWAY) paun(ul pey pue eale yjnowsaunog ay) ul a6puq Aemjies e woly uajjes pey ay Jey)
paiejs oym :gqnd ay jo Jaquiaus e Aq pajjes uaaq pey Aay) jeY) papodal adlAuBg a0UBINQUIY LIDISAAA LINGS 6550 IV

pIOXO

ybBnosogxap

Aauing

yinowawneg

XGSSOAA

2||Buy

WIDISOA

WaJSET YUOpN UOpUoT

OSSO

XISSIM

00:01-9L

00-€0-¥1

00:95'21

00:0¢'61

00:£0:80

00-65-50

910z-AeN-1 1

tL0Z-AeiN-60

€102-93a-b|

o))
©
()
o
@©
o
r-ct

€L0z-n

cLoz-feN-siL

cloeg-uer-gL



dZ2024N Bumemy - asnen
‘6512 1e ofipuglooy ay) pauadoss pue abipuq sy panedes Aay) 1ey) pasiApe S3INMONIS

‘|epdsoy 0) uaye) sem dqnd jo Jaquialu ay) Jayaum

UMOLUN SEM }] "pUB]IE O] PaYSE 2Jam S3JNans pue sabeuepy suonesad a)iqoy ay) Ag Yo pade) sem abpuqioo)
ay] -Baj sy} 0] 1N B pauIe)SNS pey SNEBLS Sy} UMOP ||9) oym uossad ay) JBy) pauLyuoo adAIes aouejnque aly ],
‘BAlj0ajop 8JoMm sdals o Jo

Ino g punoj pue pajsadsu) sabeuey suolesadQ aqoy ay) Jaye Aey Jo pig ay) uo pajne) Alsnonasd sem abpuq ey
‘doop Y51 B ypw aBplq ayy w 2|0y e sem auay) pasiape ay) ‘uosiad painful ue yum abpuqgioo)

8y} Je a)suo aJam sapaweled jey) pasiApe 821A1a5 SJUB[NGUY LOPUOT @y ‘MO|SUNOH Je Aem|iel ay) 1aao0 abpuqgioo)
Jjo da)sjooy ay) ul ajoy e papodal pey ajew e Jey] pasiApe (62 :80udla)al) 891104 Hodsues] usiug ay) ookl W

MojsunoH

Xassap  00:00'%1

Page 70

gLoz-Aew-11



	Agenda
	3 Application to divert Public Footpath SR49 from the at grade Foot Crossing to a stepped bridge at Otford.
	Item 03 Appendix A
	Item 03 Appendix B
	Item 03 Appendix C
	Item 03 Appendix D


